South Australian Heritage Council

Fourth Annual Report

1 July 2008 to 30 June 2009



Fourth Annual Report of the South Australian Heritage Council 2008-09

September 2009

Department for Environment and Heritage GPO Box 1047 ADELAIDE SA 5001

Copies of the report can be obtained from:
Telephone: 8124 4960
Facsimile: 8124 4980
E-mail: dehheritage@sa.gov.au

ISSN 1834-027X

Reconciliation Statement

The South Australian Heritage Council (the Council) acknowledges that the land on which it meets is the traditional lands of the Kaurna people and that it respects their spiritual relationship with their country. The Council also acknowledges the Kaurna people as the custodians of the greater Adelaide region and that their cultural and heritage beliefs are still important to the living Kaurna people today. In fulfilling its functions, the Council is cognisant of the cultural and natural heritage of traditional owners.

Letter of Transmission

The Hon Jay Weatherill MP
Minister for Environment and Conservation
Parliament House
North Terrace
ADELAIDE
South Australia 5000

Dear Minister

On behalf of the South Australian Heritage Council I have pleasure in submitting to you the Annual Report on the Council's activities for the year ended 30 June 2009.

Ms Judith Carr

Judich m Car

CHAIR

SOUTH AUSTRALIAN HERITAGE COUNCIL

Table of Contents

Reconciliation Statement	3
Letter of Transmission	4
The South Australian Heritage Council	7
Establishment	7
Council Functions	7
Council Membership	8
Sub-committees of the Council	9
The Register Committee	9
Heritage Directions Working Group	10
Mining Heritage Working Group	10
Communications Working Group	11
Strategic Context	11
Administration of the <i>Heritage Places Act 1993</i>	12
Administration of the South Australian Heritage Register	12
South Australian Heritage Fund	12
Heritage Agreements	13
State Heritage Areas	13
Other Matters	13
Heritage Chairs and Officials of Australia and New Zealand (HCOANZ)	13
Adelaide Park Lands	14
Review of Policies and Procedures	14
Development of a Three-Year Strategic Plan	14
Forums with Stakeholders	15
Ombudsman's Enquiry	15
Resources	15
Council Remuneration	15
Council	15
Register Committee	15
Financial Performance	16
Account Payment Performance	16
Contractual Agreements	16
Use of Consultants	16
Human Resources	16
Overseas travel	16
Fraud	17

Contribution to Government Plans, Programs	17
Disability Action Plans	17
Equal Opportunity Programs	17
Gender Reporting	17
Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare	17
Other Reporting Items	17
Greening of Government Operations (GoGO) Framework	17
Energy Efficiency Action Plan Reports	17
Freedom of Information	17
Regional Impact Assessment Statement	18
Urban Design Charter	18
Asbestos Management in Government Buildings	18
Appendices	19
Appendix A – State Heritage Places Provisionally Entered or Confirmed in the Sou Australian Heritage Register 1 July 2008 - 30 June 2009	
Appendix B – South Australian Heritage Register as at 30 June 2009	21
Appendix C – The South Australian Heritage Fund 2008 - 2009	26
Appendix D – DEH Heritage Branch Publications 2008 - 2009	29

The South Australian Heritage Council

Establishment

The South Australian Heritage Council (the Council) is established under section 4 of the *Heritage Places Act 1993*.

Council Functions

The Council has the following functions as prescribed in section 5A of the *Heritage Places Act 1993*:

- to provide advice (especially from a strategic perspective) to the Minister on matters relating to—
 - (i) trends, shortcomings and opportunities with respect to heritage protection at the State and local level and, insofar as may be relevant, at the national level; and
 - (ii) the development and effectiveness of heritage conservation programs, policies, initiatives and incentives; and
 - (iii) the operation and enforcement of this Act; and
 - (iv) other issues referred to the Council by the Minister for consideration and report;
- (b) in connection with the administration of this Act-
 - (i) to administer the South Australian Heritage Register, and
 - (ii) to identify places, and related objects, of State heritage significance, and to enter them in the Register; and
 - (iii) to identify areas of State heritage significance, and to promote their establishment, in appropriate cases, as State Heritage Areas under the *Development Act 1993*; and
 - to initiate or support community awareness programs that promote public understanding and appreciation of the State's heritage, taking into account the objects of this Act; and
 - (v) to promote the objects of this Act in such other manner as the Council thinks fit, including through the work of other bodies or persons;
- (c) to provide advice (especially from a strategic perspective) to the Minister to whom the administration of the Development Act 1993 is committed on matters relating to—
 - (i) the interpretation or application of the criteria set out in section 23(4) of that Act (and, if appropriate, the consideration of any potential amendment with respect to those criteria); and
 - (ii) other matters on which that Minister is required to consult with the Council under the provisions of that Act;

(d) to perform any other function assigned to the Council by or under this or any other Act.

The following functions are also prescribed in section 12 of the *Heritage Places Act 1993* in relation to the Application of money from the South Australian Heritage Fund:

- (1) The Minister may apply money from the Fund in furtherance of the objects of this Act.
- (2) The Minister must, in relation to the management and application of the Fund, seek and consider any advice (provided from a strategic perspective) from the Council.

Section 32—Heritage agreements

(1) The Minister may, after seeking and considering the advice of the Council, enter into a heritage agreement with the owner of land constituting a State Heritage Place.

Council Membership



Back row (L to R): Mr Robert Donaldson, Mr Gavin Leydon, A/Prof Mark Staniforth, Mr Michael O'Connell Front row (L to R): Mr Lewis Owens, Ms Judith Carr (Chair), Dr Judith Brine (Deputy Chair), Ms Carolyn Wigg. Dr Christine Garnaut is not in the photo.

Council membership requirements are set out in section 5 of the Heritage Places Act 1993.

The Council consists of six to eight persons who, in the opinion of the Governor, have knowledge of or experience in history, archaeology, architecture, the natural sciences, heritage conservation, public administration, urban and regional planning or property development (or any combination of two or more of these fields), or some other relevant field. The other member must be a person with knowledge of, or experience in, heritage conservation chosen from a panel of three such persons submitted to the Minister by the Local Government Association of South Australia.

The Governor designates one member of the Council to chair meetings of the Council and may appoint a suitable person to act as a member of the Council in the absence of a

member. Members are appointed for a term of office not exceeding three years, and on completion of a term of appointment are eligible for reappointment.

Before filling a vacancy in the membership of the Council (other than a vacancy to be filled by a person nominated by the Local Government Association), the Minister must, by advertisement published in a newspaper circulating throughout the State, invite interested members of the public to submit (within 14 days of the advertisement) the names of persons whom they regard as suitable candidates for the vacancy.

The three year term of the inaugural Council ended on 23 November 2008. On 18 December 2008, His Excellency the Governor appointed the new Council for a term of three years and appointed Ms Judith Carr as Chair.

Members of the Council for the financial year 2008/2009 were:

Ms Mary Marsland, Chair (to 23 November 2008)

Ms Judith Carr, Chair (from 18 December 2008)

Dr Judith Brine, Deputy Chair (LGA nominee to 23 November 2008)

Dr Christine Garnaut Member
Mr Gavin Leydon Member
Mr Michael O'Connell Member
Mr Lewis Owens Member
Ms Carolyn Wigg Member

Assoc Prof Mark Staniforth Member (from 18 December 2008)

Mr Robert Donaldson (LGA nominee from 18 December 2008)

Sub-committees of the Council

Under Section 7A of the Heritage Places Act 1993 the Council -

- (a) must establish the committees required by the regulations; and
- (b) may establish such other committees as the Council thinks fit, to advise or assist the Council.

The Register Committee

The Register Committee is established under section 7A of the *Heritage Places Act 1993* and section 4 of the *Heritage Places Regulations 2005*. The Register Committee is ongoing in its functions.

The Register Committee considers the nominations for the South Australian Heritage Register on behalf of the Council. The Committee was chaired by Ms Carolyn Wigg (to 28 February 2009) and Dr Judith Brine (from 3 April 2009). During the 2008/2009 financial year, its members were:

Dr Peter Bell Member

Dr Heather Burke Member (from 3 April 2009)

Mr Peter Donovan Member (to 28 February 2009)

Mr Andrew Klenke Member (from 3 April 2009)

Dr Susan Marsden Member

Ms Kate McDougall Member

Mr Michael Queale Member

Ms Martha Savva Member (from 3 April 2009)

Ms Robyn Taylor Member (to 28 February 2009)

The Committee met twice during the 2008/09 financial year. Five (5) places were provisionally entered in the Register. These were the Dickson House, Rostrevor; the Former Cottage Wards (Former Female R2 and Former X Wards), Glenside Hospital, Glenside; the Former Tubemakers Administration Building No 1, Kilburn; the Fletcher's Slip Precinct (including the former Fletcher's and Dunnikier Slipways Sites and Associated Structures), New Port; and an Edna Walling Garden at Medindie. The entry of the Dickson House was subsequently confirmed, while the other four are still subject to the three month period for persons to make submissions to Council before it considers confirmation.

Heritage Directions Working Group

This short-term working group was established to progress an update of the document *Heritage Directions: A Future for Built Heritage in South Australia*, for the Minister for Environment and Conservation (the Minister). The members of the sub-committee include Ms Wigg, Dr Brine and Dr Staniforth. It is chaired by the Council Chair, Ms Carr.

The working group will produce status reports on key achievements in implementation of the South Australian Government's policy framework for built heritage and provide advice on 'lessons learnt' to the Minister. In line with this, the working group is tasked to develop recommendations for the refinement of the Heritage Directions policy framework. This includes aligning with South Australia's Strategic Plan, collaborating with other agencies and sectors, suggesting linkages between built heritage and other forms of heritage, and identifying key targets to be achieved over the next three to five years for each of the Key Directions identified by the Council.

The working group has scoped the work required and will complete the tasks set by the Minister in the next financial year.

Mining Heritage Working Group

In 2008 the Council established a Mining Heritage working group to provide support for the National and World Heritage nomination processes. The working group included representatives from the Australian Mining History Association, National Trust of South Australia, Primary Industries and Resources South Australia, South Australian Tourism Commission, and the South Australian Chamber of Mines & Energy. The group is chaired by Council member, Mr Lewis Owens.

The Australian Government's Minister for the Environment, Heritage and the Arts, Hon Peter Garrett, announced in June 2009 that the Australian Cornish Mining Heritage Site (comprising the Moonta Mines and Burra State Heritage Areas) had been included in the 2009-10 Finalised Priority Assessment List for the National Heritage List. The assessment process is expected to be completed by June 2011.

The Council also nominated the Burra and Moonta Mines sites for the World Heritage Tentative List in October 2008 as part of an intended Trans-National listing, involving sites in

Australia, Mexico and South Africa. The World Heritage Tentative List nomination is still under consideration by the Australian Government.

Communications Working Group

The Communications working group has been established to develop the Council's communication policy and procedures, and direct the development of the Council's web presence. The working group consists of Mr Rob Donaldson, Chair, and Dr Christine Garnaut, member.

Information to be included on the Council's website includes background on the Council, its achievements and its members. The working group is anticipated to have completed its tasks by the end of 2009.

Strategic Context

Recognising the strategic context within which it operates, the Council is committed to promoting actions and activities that contribute to achievement of the following South Australia's Strategic Plan 2007 (SASP) Targets:

SASP	Objectives and Targets	Council's contribution
	T1.7 Performance in the public sector – customer and client satisfaction with government services: increase satisfaction with government services by 10% by 2010 maintaining of exceeding that level of satisfaction thereafter	Efficient processing of nominations for the South Australian Heritage Register.
Growing Prosperity	T1.8 Performance in the public sector – government decision-making: become, by 2010, the best-performing jurisdiction in timeliness and transparency of decisions which impact the business community (and maintain that rating)	Provision of strategic advice on heritage legislation and administration of heritage matters under the <i>Development Act 1993</i> and policy development.
Growing	T1.15 Tourism industry: increase visitor expenditure in South Australia's tourism industry from \$3.7 billion in 2002 to \$6.3 billion in 2014	Promotion of linkages between heritage and tourism to attract more tourists.
Attaining Sustainability	T3.7 Ecological footprint: reduce South Australia's ecological footprint by 30% by 2050	Promotion of sustainability benefits of heritage conservation (including adaptive reuse of significant buildings and places).
Fostering Creativity and Innovation	T4.3 Cultural engagement – institutions: increase attendances at cultural institutions by 20% by 2014	Promotion, education, interpretation, partnerships with the South Australian Tourism Commission and History Trust of South Australia, Local Government and similar organisations.

	ā
	- 1
_	2
5	
_	
ᇹ	
o	
	8
=	
m	C

T5.6 Volunteering: maintain the high level of volunteering at 50% participation rate or higher

Acknowledge and promote the role of volunteers in promoting and appreciating our heritage

Administration of the Heritage Places Act 1993

Administration of the South Australian Heritage Register

The South Australian Heritage Register is a list of places of heritage value to the State. A place may be State heritage listed if it meets one or more of the criteria specified in section 16 of the *Heritage Places Act 1993* (refer to Appendix B - Information about the South Australian Heritage Register as at 30 June 2009).

In 2008-09 five State Heritage Places were provisionally entered in the Register and one provisional entry was confirmed. The confirmed entry was especially significant in terms of the State's post-war domestic architecture, and is detailed below. All other activities are detailed in Appendix A. There were 2,208 confirmed entries in the Register at 30 June 2009.



View of the Dickson House from the south-east

The Dickson House at Rostrevor has unique and significant associations with the life and work of the architect Robert Dickson, and demonstrates a high degree of creative, aesthetic and technical accomplishment as well as being an influential representative of modern organic design and construction. In particular, the way in which the place relates to its site, its outstanding quality and integrity, and the fact that it has been internationally recognised as one of Australia's most architecturally-notable mid-20th-century houses provide it with outstanding significance in the context of South Australia's architectural development.

South Australian Heritage Fund

Section 12(2) of the *Heritage Places Act 1993* requires the Minister to seek and consider the Council's advice (from a strategic perspective) on the management and application of the

South Australian Heritage Fund, which is administered to support the conservation of non-government owned buildings. Conservation of government-owned heritage buildings is administered through the Historic Buildings Conservation Program managed by Building Management, a division of the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure.

The South Australian Heritage Fund Grants Program had funding of \$250,000 in 2008-09. There were 87 applicants for grants from the Fund seeking in excess of \$569,000 for projects with a combined total cost in excess of \$2m. Forty-three offers were made for grants from the program. Twenty-three projects have been completed. The project completion date was extended until 30 September 2009 due to the late awarding of the grants (December 2008) to enable grantees more time to complete their projects.

Heritage Agreements

Heritage Agreements are a 'covenant', a form of contract between owners of land and the State Government to protect certain aspects of a heritage place in perpetuity. A Heritage Agreement attaches to the land and is binding on the current owner of the land whether or not that owner was the person with whom the agreement was made. A Heritage Agreement is, to the extent specified in the agreement, binding on the occupier of the land.

The Minister may, after seeking and considering the advice of the Council, enter into a heritage agreement or, by agreement with the owner of the land to which a heritage agreement applies, vary or terminate an agreement.

At its February 2006 meeting the Council followed the lead of the former State Heritage Authority and resolved to delegate its role of providing advice to the Minister on varying or terminating heritage agreements relating to native vegetation to the Executive Officer of the Native Vegetation Council. This action followed advice from the Crown Solicitor's Office that certain native vegetation Heritage Agreements established under the South Australian Heritage Act 1978-80 had to be dealt with under the Heritage Places Act 1993. Specifically, native vegetation Heritage Agreements entered into between 1980 and 1985 must be dealt with under the Heritage Places Act 1993 and cannot be dealt with under the Native Vegetation Act 1991. It is intended that this anomaly will be remedied by amending the latter Act.

No new Heritage Agreements were recommended this year. As at 30 June 2009, four heritage agreements were in place relating to the following properties: Belmont, Brougham Place, North Adelaide; St Vigeans Estate Garden, Laurel Road, Stirling; the former Bank SA, Gawler Street, Mount Barker; and Beechwood Garden and Conservatory, Snows Road, Stirling.

State Heritage Areas

Under the *Heritage Places Act 1993*, the Council recommends the creation of State Heritage Areas, which are created through the process of preparing Development Plan Amendments under the provisions of the *Development Act 1993*. No new Areas were recommended this year.

Other Matters

Heritage Chairs and Officials of Australia and New Zealand (HCOANZ)

The August 2008 meeting of HCOANZ was held in Canberra and was attended by Ms Mary Marsland. The February 2009 meeting was held in Adelaide. This meeting, chaired by the new Council Chair, Ms Judith Carr, attracted full attendance of Chairs from all States and

Territories, the Australian Government and New Zealand. Very positive feedback was received on the meeting and other associated activities, including the official dinner at Ayers House and the tour of maritime and built heritage sites in Willunga.

The meeting culminated with a decision by the Chairs to write to the Prime Minister, Premiers, Chief Ministers and Senator Nick Xenophon regarding the need for funding from the stimulus package for conservation work on heritage places.

Adelaide Park Lands

Before progressing listing of the Park Lands in South Australia, the Council had decided to await the outcome of the national process of assessing a nomination for National Heritage listing of the Adelaide Park Lands and City Layout, submitted to the Australian Heritage Council.

On 7 November 2008 the Australian Government Minister for Environment, Heritage and the Arts, the Hon Peter Garrett, included the Adelaide Park Lands and City Layout on the National Heritage List. The implications of that listing are now being considered by the Council.

Review of Policies and Procedures

The Council commenced a review of its policies and procedures and adopted a number of these during the year. These new policy and procedures were put forward in keeping with various sections of the Council's strategic plan, the *Heritage Places Act 1993* and SASP.

The procedures adopted were:

- Accountability to prescribe ways the Council meets its accountability duty.
- Delegation of South Australian Heritage Council's powers and functions to ensure that delegations of powers and functions are made in accordance with *Heritage Places Act 1993*, and Council's policy on delegations.
- Communications to define the media protocol of the South Australian Heritage
 Council and the purpose of the content of Council's website.
- Meetings to establish procedures for Council meetings.

The policies adopted were:

- Delegation of South Australian Heritage Council's powers and functions defines the process for delegation of functions.
- Advice to the Minister on heritage protection trends, shortcomings and opportunities defines the process for the submission of six-monthly reports to the Minister.

Development of a Three-Year Strategic Plan

The new Council has developed a draft Strategic Plan to set priorities for the Council's work for the next three (3) years. The Plan has been provided to the Minister for comment prior to finalisation.

Forums with Stakeholders

The Council has decided to increase its engagement with key stakeholders through a series of community forums.

Council commenced these forums in the previous financial year. One forum was held this financial year on the topic of how to encourage various sectors to contribute to and promote heritage, whilst also encouraging them to see how heritage contributes to the economy, and gives greater value to developments.

The reports from these forums are being finalised. Advice will be provided in the next sixmonthly report to the Minister.

Ombudsman's Enquiry

The Burnside Council requested that the Ombudsman investigate the Council's processes in regard to its handling of Council's nominations for three places at the Glenside Hospital.

The Ombudsman awaited the assessment of the two final nominations before making a determination on this matter. In May 2009 the former Cottage Wards (Former Female R2 and Former X Wards), Glenside Hospital, Glenside were provisionally entered in the SA Heritage Register. The Ombudsman is expected to finalise the investigation early in the coming financial year.

Resources

Council Remuneration

The costs associated with the administration of the Council are met from the resources of DEH. Members of the Council are paid in accordance with the recommendations of the Chief Executive, Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

As from 20 November 2008, Council and Register Committee members received the following remuneration:

Council

Chair: \$258 per four-hour session (The current Chair is a public servant and does

not receive remuneration)

Member: \$206 per four-hour session.

Register Committee

Chair: \$221 per four-hour session.

Member: \$177 per four-hour session.

Prior to 20 November 2008, the Council Chair received \$190 and Members received \$160 per four hour session. The Register Committee Chair received \$160 and Committee Members received \$140 per four hour session.

Expenditure incurred during the period of operation for sitting fees for the Council was \$8,068. Sitting fees for the Register Committee totalled \$2,389.

Financial Performance

The Council is not a corporate entity and has no funds of its own. All financial reporting for the Council is contained in the DEH Annual Report 2008–09.

However, the Council provides strategic advice to the Minister on the management and application of money from the South Australian Heritage Fund (the Fund).

Section 11 of the *Heritage Places Act 1993* states that:

- (1) The Minister must cause proper accounts to be kept of the receipts and payments from the Fund.
- (2) The Auditor-General may at any time, and must at least once in each year, audit the accounts of the Fund.

Audited financial statements of the Fund can be viewed in the DEH's Annual Report 2008-09.

Account Payment Performance

DEH provides administrative resources for processing account payments for the Council and reporting on this matter is contained in its Annual Report 2008-09.

Contractual Agreements

The Council did not enter into any contractual arrangements exceeding \$4 million in value during the reporting period.

Use of Consultants

The Council did not engage any consultants during the reporting period.

Human Resources

The Council has no staff of its own and utilises the services of DEH. During 2008-2009 Ms Angela Roth, Ms Roz Pounder and Ms Zeljka Danilovic provided Executive Officer services to the Council. In 2009, a secretariat was established to support the activities of the Council. In addition there are a number of staff who contribute directly to Council's functions and the administration of the South Australian *Heritage Places Act 1993*. These include the:

- Senior Register Clerk,
- Register Clerk,
- Principal Heritage Officer, and
- three staff also undertake research and assessment of nominations to the South Australian Heritage Register.

Overseas travel

It is declared that no member of the Council has travelled overseas on the business of the Council during the reporting period.

Fraud

It is declared that there were no instances of fraud detected in the activities undertaken by the Council. Strategies to detect instances of fraud are reported in the DEH Annual Report 2008-09.

Contribution to Government Plans, Programs

Disability Action Plans

The Council utilises the facilities and services of staff of DEH. The members of the Council are aware of and abide by their obligations under the Commonwealth *Disability Discrimination Act 1992* and the State *Equal Opportunity Act 1984*. Reporting on this matter is contained in the DEH Annual Report 2008-09.

Equal Opportunity Programs

Members are aware of and abide by their obligations in regard to equal opportunity policies and programs. Reporting on this matter may be viewed in the DEH Annual Report 2008-09.

Gender Reporting

The appointment of a female Chair to the Council contributes to South Australia's Strategic Plan Target 5.2 of increasing the number of women chairing State Government boards and committees to 50% by 2010.

Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare

There were no Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare (OHS&W) incidents reported by the Council in the reporting period.

As a user of DEH facilities and equipment, the Council is aware of and abides by the Department's OHS&W policies and reporting on this matter is contained in its Annual Report 2008-09.

Other Reporting Items

Greening of Government Operations (GoGO) Framework

Reporting on this matter is contained in the DEH Annual Report 2008-09.

Energy Efficiency Action Plan Reports

The Council utilises the facilities and services of the staff of DEH and reporting on this matter is contained in its Annual Report 2008-09.

Freedom of Information

As a DEH administered entity, the Council participates and abides by the arrangements outlined in the DEH Freedom of Information regime. Reporting on this matter is available on the DEH internet site. Please visit www.environment.sa.gov.au to view the FOI Statement.

Regional Impact Assessment Statement

No Regional Impact Assessment Statements were undertaken by the Council in 2008-09.

Urban Design Charter

No events occurred in 2008-09 that required the Council to consider the principles of urban design contained in the South Australian Urban Design Charter.

Asbestos Management in Government Buildings

The Council does not own any non-residential buildings and therefore is not required to develop an asbestos risk reduction program.

Appendices

- A. State Heritage Places Provisionally Entered or Confirmed in the South Australian Heritage Register 1 July 2008 30 June 2009
- B. Information about the South Australian Heritage Register as at 30 June 2009
- C. The South Australian Heritage Fund 2008 -2009
- D. Heritage Branch Publications 2008 2009

Appendix A – State Heritage Places Provisionally Entered or Confirmed in the South Australian Heritage Register 1 July 2008 - 30 June 2009

Local Government Area	Place	Provisionally Entered	Confirmed
Adelaide Hills	Dickson House, Rostrevor	19/11/2008	15/06/2009
Burnside	Former Cottage Wards (Former Female R2 and Former X Wards), Glenside Hospital, Glenside	27/05/2009	
Port Adelaide Enfield	Former Tubemakers Administration Building No 1, Kilburn	27/05/2009	
	The Fletcher's Slip Precinct (including the former Fletcher's and Dunnikier Slipways Sites and Associated Structures), New Port	27/05/2009	
Walkerville	Edna Walling Garden, Medindie	27/05/2009	

Appendix B – South Australian Heritage Register as at 30 June 2009

The South Australian Heritage Register (Register) is a list of places of heritage value to the State. To be entered in the Register, a place must satisfy one or more of the following criteria, which can be found in section 16 of the *Heritage Places Act 1993*.

- (a) It demonstrates important aspects of the evolution or pattern of the State's history; or
- (b) It has rare, uncommon or endangered qualities that are of cultural significance; or
- (c) It may yield information that will contribute to an understanding of the State's history, including its natural history; or
- (d) It is an outstanding representative of a particular class of places of cultural significance; or
- (e) It demonstrates a high degree of creative, aesthetic or technical accomplishment or is an outstanding representative of particular construction techniques or design characteristics; or
- (f) It has strong cultural or spiritual associations for the community or a group within it; or
- (g) It has a special association with the life or work of a person or organisation or an event of historical importance.

Section 14 of the *Heritage Places Act 1993* requires that the Register will contain a description or notes with respect to:

- (a) any place entered (either as a provisional or confirmed entry) in the Register under Part 4; and
- (b) any place taken to be entered in the Register under Schedule 1 (as enacted on the commencement of this Act); and
- (c) any local heritage place designated by a Development Plan; and
- (d) any State Heritage Area; and
- (e) any local heritage zone or local heritage policy area established by a Development Plan; and
- (f) any place within the State—
 - (i) entered in any register of places of natural or historic significance; or
 - (ii) declared to be a World Heritage Property,
 - under a law of the Commonwealth; and
- (g) any heritage agreement; and
- (h) any other matter prescribed by the regulations.

During the year, five places were provisionally entered in the Register and one provisionally entered place confirmed, making 2208 confirmed State Heritage Places entered in the Register as at 30 June 2009.

State Heritage Areas created under the South Australian Heritage Act 1978	Gazettal in South Australian Government Gazette
Port Adelaide	29/04/82
	[Boundary altered by Development Plan Amendment gazetted 22/9/04]
Moonta Mines	10/05/84
Mintaro	20/09/84
Innamincka/Cooper Creek	16/05/85
Gawler Church Hill	06/06/85
	[Boundary altered by Development Plan Amendments gazetted 16/11/06 & 14/2/08]
Belair Recreation Park	19/09/85
Arckaringa Hills	20/12/85
Beltana	16/07/87
Goolwa	24/09/87
Hahndorf	25/08/88
Mt Gambier Volcanic Complex	11/06/92
Mount Schank	11/06/92
Burra	28/01/93
State Heritage Areas created by Development Plan Amendments under the <i>Development Act 1993</i>	Date declared by Governor
Penola	12/12/96 (interim effect)
	11/12/97 (authorised)
Colonel Light Gardens	4/5/00 (authorised)
Mount Gambier Cave Gardens and Environs	2/8/02 (authorised)
Mount Torrens	5/12/02 (authorised)

The Register is maintained on a computerised database and printouts are available for public inspection at the Heritage Branch, DEH, during normal office hours. Copies of relevant entries are also routinely provided to local councils.

In relation to local heritage places, 33 local councils have lists of places of local heritage value authorised or under interim operation in their Development Plans. The City of Adelaide list existed under separate legislation prior to the passage of the *Development Act 1993* and was

given equivalent status under the new Act. Places of local heritage value authorised under interim operation, or otherwise protected in Development Plans as at 30 June 2009, are listed in the following table. The data was obtained from the Department of Planning and Local Government's South Australian Heritage Places Database, which can be accessed on the Internet at http://www.planning.sa.gov.au/go/heritagesearch.

STATE AND LOCAL HERITAGE PLACES BY COUNCIL AREA as at 30 June 2009			
Council	Area covered by local heritage listing (when other than the entire council area)	Number of confirmed State Heritage Places	Number of local heritage places
Adelaide	,	436	1372
Adelaide Hills	East Torrens Stirling	104	202
Alexandrina	Port Elliot Strathalbyn	68	200
Barossa		77	322
Berri Barmera		8	0
Burnside		61	303
Campbelltown		5	74
Ceduna		3	0
Charles Sturt		56	85
Clare and Gilbert Valleys	Former Clare Council area	94	44
Cleve		4	0
Coober Pedy		2	0
Coorong		18	0
Copper Coast		25	0
Elliston		5	0
Flinders Ranges		28	0
Franklin Harbour		1	0
Gawler		37	84
Goyder Regional Council		95	0
Grant		9	0
Holdfast Bay		28	213
Kangaroo Island		34	83
Karoonda/East Murray		2	0
Kimba		2	0
Kingston District Council		7	0

Council	Area covered by local heritage listing (when other than the entire council area)	Number of confirmed State Heritage Places	Number of local heritage places
Light Regional Council	,	55	238
Lower Eyre Peninsula		16	55
Loxton Waikerie		13	0
Mallala		11	0
Marion		12	35
Mid Murray		36	0
Mitcham		35	211
Mount Barker		61	410
Mount Gambier		36	120
Mount Remarkable		15	0
Murray Bridge	Township and environs	20	35
Naracoorte Lucindale		14	0
Northern Areas		12	0
Norwood Payneham & St Peters		72	664
Onkaparinga		85	385
Orroroo/Carrieton		2	0
Peterborough		13	0
Playford		8	74
Port Adelaide Enfield		92	206
Port Augusta		16	0
Port Lincoln		6	0
Port Pirie		15	63
Prospect		6	88
Renmark Paringa		10	0
Robe		30	50
Salisbury		24	0
Southern Mallee		3	0
Streaky Bay		5	0
Tatiara		10	59
Tea Tree Gully		11	56
Tumby Bay		2	42

STATE AND LOCAL HERITAGE PLACES BY COUNCIL AREA as at 30 June 2009			
Council	Area covered by local heritage listing (when other than the entire council area)	Number of confirmed State Heritage Places	Number of local heritage places
Unincorporated SA		95	0
Unley		23	191
Victor Harbor		25	94
Walkerville		25	82
Wattle Range	Township of Penola	31	101
West Torrens		22	101
Whyalla		5	0
Wudinna District Council		5	0
Yankalilla		19	0
Yorke Peninsula		18	0
TOTAL		2227 *	6342

^{*} Note: In this table 19 State Heritage Places are counted twice (when they are in more than one local council area). The South Australian Heritage Register had 2208 confirmed State Heritage Places as at 30 June 2009.

Appendix C – The South Australian Heritage Fund 2008 - 2009

The South Australian Heritage Fund (the Fund) exists for the purpose of providing funds in the furtherance of the objects of the *Heritage Places Act 1993* (the Act).

In accordance with the Act, the South Australian Heritage Council (the Council) provides strategic advice to the Minister for Environment and Conservation (the Minister) in relation to the management and application of the Fund.

As specified in section 10 of the Act, the Fund consists of any monies:

- appropriated by Parliament for the purposes of the Fund;
- provided by the Government of the Commonwealth;
- received by the Council by way of fees, gift, bequest or in any other way;
- received by the Minister by way of gift, bequest or in any other way;
- any income derived from investment of the Fund; and
- any other money that is required or authorised by or under this Act to be paid into the Fund.

Section 12 of the Act provides that the Minister 'may apply money from the Fund in furtherance of the objects of this Act' and further requires that the Minister 'must, in relation to the management and application of the Fund, seek and consider any advice (provided from a strategic perspective) from the Council'.

The Fund meets the accounting criteria of a controlled entity and is accounted for in the Department for Environment and Heritage's Financial Statements and Annual Report.

The following projects to conserve State Heritage Places were granted funding from the Fund in 2008/2009.

Register No.	State Heritage Place	Project Description
Over \$5000		
10547	The Old Gum Tree, Glenelg	Conservation and consolidation of tree
10403	Burra Town Hall	Façade conservation
10277	Poltalloch Station, Lake Albert	Repainting externally inc scaffold
10733	Thornber House, Unley	Re-roofing
10795	Adelaide Arcade	Repairs and strengthening work to northern dome
14489	Rhine Park Homestead Complex, Eden Valley	Salt damp treatment to house, woolshed, shearers' quarters
11583	Beresford Arms Hotel, Adelaide	Salt damp treatment and poulticing
10094	Collingrove Homestead, Angaston	Masonry repairs, roofing and guttering, repainting
14632	St Agnes Anglican Church, Grange	Salt damp treatment, re-pointing and capping to parapets

Register No.	State Heritage Place	Project Description		
Under \$5000	Under \$5000			
10083	Former Kapunda Congregational Chapel	Dilapidation and further works study		
14832	Mt Burr Forest Reserve (Dwelling)	Re-roofing, gutters and downpipes		
12201	Former Doddridge Blacksmith Shop, Angaston	Improve guttering and downpipes, dilapidation survey		
11747	Eating House (Former Dunn's Flour Mill), Mt Barker	Re-pointing of stonework and runoff redirection		
13841	Crower Homestead, Lucindale	Repair stained glass window		
11707	Former Mintaro Slate Mine Office	New roof (previous one removed by former owner)		
12291	Manning House, Marananga	Continuation of timber conservation works		
10186	Minlaton Showground Pavilion	Continue salt damp treatment		
13555	Deepacres Apartments, North Adelaide	Conservation works to rainwater goods and external masonry elements		
10356	Former Middleton Flour Mill	Re-roofing		
14236	Former Peterborough YMCA	Repair spalling concrete externally		
14374	Fence of 'Montrose', Largs Bay	Repair masonry and cast iron fence		
13294	Verco House and Stables, Blackwood	Roofing and guttering to stables		
10325	Chateau Tanunda	Roofing repairs		
13935	Cockenzie, Goolwa	Repairs to masonry, roof and timber cladding		
12645	Robe Cemetery	Repairs to cemetery wall		
10073	Library –former Upper Wakefield Council Chambers	Replace existing awnings &gutters. Pointing of stonework, replace front fence.		
12364	Barton Vale House, Prospect East	Repairs to structural elements of balcony		
14069	Former Congregational Chapel, McLaren Vale	Reinstatement of windows		
13865	Masonic Hall, Moonta	Reinstate frieze in lodge room		
11989	St Margaret's Anglican Church, Woodville	Repair timber panelling after termite damage		
14408	Lee's Theatre Club, Wayville	Repair and replace cracked roof tiles		
14216	Konzag Homestead Complex, Mallala	Conservation of stonework and stabilisation		
14540	Former Glover's Store, Auburn	Repair roofing and roof structure		

Register No.	State Heritage Place	Project Description
11689	St John's Lutheran Church, Lobethal	Provision of expert advice to plan works
13687	Dwelling, West Hindmarsh	Conservation of tessellated tiles and verandah edge
11190	Campbell Park Homestead, Meningie West	Re-roofing and gutters to three outbuildings
14554	Former Clare Town Hall	Re-roofing, gutters and downpipes
12537	Former Two Wells Institute	Salt damp treatment
10366	Beachport Museum	Study to define repair method for front stone wall
16183	Burra State Heritage Area – Former Smelting Works	Stonework repair and stabilisation
13935	Mintaro State Heritage Area private dwelling	Return roof line to its original 'M' shape with a free standing verandah
13948	Gawler Church Hill State Heritage Area	Conservation Plans for three churches
13673	Hahndorf Cemetery	Conservation and cleaning to grave sites and headstones
TOTAL	\$257,822	

Appendix D – DEH Heritage Branch Publications 2008 - 2009

Only publications relating to the role of the South Australian Heritage Council are listed here.

Newsletter

Heritage South Australia Newsletter - December 2008 and Winter 2009

E-news

Heritage South Australia E-News – monthly, except January, April and June 2009.

These publications can be downloaded from the Heritage website at http://www.environment.sa.gov.au/heritage/ or ordered from:

Heritage Branch Department for Environment and Heritage GPO Box 1047 Adelaide SA 5001

Tel: 08 8124 4960 Fax: 08 8124 4980

Email: dehheritage@sa.gov.au